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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL

36 CLINTON STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5300 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5300

Fax:603-271.5395 TDD Access: 1 •800-735.2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

January 25, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, New Hampshire Hospital, to
amend an existing contract with Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. (VC#174069),
Concord, NH to continue providing foot care services to clients in New Hampshire Hospital, by
exercising a renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $16,000 from $31,500 to $47,500
and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2023 effective July 1, 2021
or upon Govemor and Council approval, whichever is later. 34% General Funds. 66% Other
Funds (provider fees and intra-agency transfers).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 7, 2017, item #19
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 19. 2019, Item #60.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95.94.940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 101/500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

94052200

$7,500 $0 $7,500

2019 101/500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

94052200

$8,000 $0 $8,000

2020 101/500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

94052200

$8,000 $0 $8,000

2021 101/500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

94052200

$8,000 $0 $8,000

The Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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2022 101/500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

94052200

$0 $8,000 $8,000

2023 101/500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

94052200

$0 $8,000 $8,000

Total $31,500 $16,000 $47,500

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing foot care services to approximately
325 clients at New Hampshire Hospital who are considered high risk due to diabetes, medication
or medical history and to continue providing foot care education to clients not considered high
risk.

The Department cannot determine how many individuals will be served from July 1, 2021
through June 30, 2023. Clients are considered high-risk when their medical history or medication
put them at risk of developing potentially high-risk conditions including diabetes, with
complications such as reduced sensation or circulation to the feet; a history of lower limb
amputation; a foot infection; foot ulcer; peripheral vascular disease; rheumatoid arthritis; a
neurological condition causing foot desensitizatlon; immune-suppression; and infected in-growing
toenails..

The Contractor conducts foot assessments and recommends a plan of care. Foot care
services for high-risk clients include filing normal or slightly thickened toenails; filing rough or hard
skin with a pumice or foot file; and applying emollient creams when skin is dry. Foot care education
is provided to low-risk clients who do not have any of the high-risk factors but had a podiatric
problem that required treatment by a podiatrist. Self-care education includes a demonstration of
how to file nails safely, footwear advice and foot literature.

The Department will monitor contracted sen/ices by reviewing the Contractor's written
progress notes for each individual who received services.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions of the original contract, the
parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor
and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for 2 of the 2
years available.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, clients at New Hampshire
Hospital may not have access to proper foot care education and foot care services necessary to
remain in good health.
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Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 34% General Funds. 66% Other Funds

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Heather M. Moquln

Chief Executive Officer
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Foot Care Sen/ices contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Concord Regional Visiting Nurse
Association, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 7, 2017, (Item #19), as amended on June 19, 2019, (Item #60), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended and renewed upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$47,500.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Sen/ices, Subsection 1, by adding Subsection 1.7 to read:

1.7 The Contractor shall provide verification of immunization in accordance with Centers for

Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) recommendations regarding the Immunization of

Health Care Workers upon the request of the Department. The Contractor shall ensure

immunizations include the COVID-19 vaccination when it is widely available.

ws
Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. Contractor Initials

RFA-2018-NHH-06-FOOTC-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective on June 30, 2021 or upon the date of Governor
and Executive Council approval, whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

OocuSlon»d by;

2/10/2021

■  atftiFocacTaB^paiii .

Date Name:"®^^^®'" Moquin
Title: chief Executive Officer, New Hampshire Hospital

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc.

2/9/2021

Date

^OocuSlgntd by:

Na^'°Vfem"^lepian
Title: president/CEO

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. Amendment #2

RFA-2018-NHH-06-FOOTC-01-A02 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-DocuSign«d by:

2/16/2021

Date Name:Catherine Pinos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. Amendment #2

RFA-2018-NHH-06-FOOTC-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CONCORD REGIONAL

VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on October 18, 1899. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63116

Certificate Number; 0005255941

Urn

o

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 11 th day of February A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . Michael Griffin . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on February 9, 2021 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Beth J. Slepian (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association. Inc. to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State (Name of Corporation/ LLC) of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments
and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any
amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect
the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Qgjgjj. IVML/I laCI I VJI llll|.l Dale: 2021.02.09 09:28:45-OS'OO'
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Michael Griffin

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD, CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

02/16/21

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

COMTACT
NAME:

Mo. Extl: 855 874-0123 T/VC. No):
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICa

INSURER A Atlantic Charier Insurance Company 44326

INSURED

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse
Association

30 Piiisbury Street
Concord. NH 03301

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
UTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL

[!iM
SUBR

POLICY NUMBER
POUCY EFF

(MM/DDfYYYYl
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE □ OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

ISES 7Ea occtx^ncel
MED EXP (Any one parson)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I I JECT I I LOC
GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS. COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa accklenn

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person)
SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acddenl)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accldentl

UMBRELU LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

07/^1/2021WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y ,
ANY PROPRIETOWPARTNER/EXECUTIVEi
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes. deactibe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

WCA00544808
3A States: NH

07/01/2020 V PER
^ STATUTE

OTH-
£B_

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $500.000
E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $500,000
E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remark* Schedule, may be attached If more apace la required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301

1

ACORD 25(2016/03) 1 of 1
#S31164225/M29753214

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

LLJCA
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yXCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMrt>0/YYYY)

12/28W20

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OP INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING iNSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, ANO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDiTiONAL INSURED, the policy(ie$) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

MARSH USA. INC.

99 HIGH STREET
BOSTON. MA 02110

Attn: Boston.certrequest@Marsh.com

CN1072770$4-CHS-gener-21-22

CONTACT
NAME:

PHONE fax
(A«.No.E*tl: lAAJ.No):
E-MAIL
ADDRESS;

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAJCi

INSURER A; Granite Shield insurance Exchanqe

INSURED

CAPITAL REGION HEALTHCARE CORPORATION

& CONCORD HOSPITAL. INC.

AnN: KATHY LAMONTAGNE - ADMINISTRATION
250 PLEASANT STREET

CONCORD. NH 03301

INSURER a:

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E:

INSURER P:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-009846409-11 REVISION NUMBER: 2

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TTPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUM8ER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER:

POLICY I I 51^ I I LOC
OTHER;

GSIE-PRIM-2021-101

POLICY EFF
IMM/DO^YYYYI

01/01/2021

POLICY EXP
(MM/D0/YYYY1

01/01/2022

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO REKfTEO
PREMISES (Ea occurrcfice)

MED EXP (Any on» py»on)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(E» aeddenU

2,000.000

12.000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (P«r person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accideni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddenil

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETEhfTIONS
OtH-
-EE-

workers COMPENSATION

ANO EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANYPROPRlETORff'ARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEM8EREXCLUOED7

(Mandatory In NH)
It yes, descrltre under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

PER
STATUTE

m N/A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

e.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

e.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT

Professional Liability GSIE-PRIM-202M01 01/01/2021 01/01/2022 SEE ABOVE

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Ramartrs Schedule, may ba attachad If mora tpaca la raquirad)

Evidence of Coverage tor Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association (CRVNA) for foot care services contract

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Department of Health & Human Services
New Hampshire Hospital
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

of Marsh USA Inc.

Elizabeth Stapleton

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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CONCORD Regional

VISITING NURSE
ASSOCIATION

Vision, Mission and Values

Vision: A community where wellness and well-being is achieved through
compassionate care to those in need.

Mission: The mission of Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association is to
improve the health of the people and communities it serves by managing
illness and promoting wellness through all stages of life.

Values:

• Respect

• Compassion

• Competence

• Culture of Excellence

• Leadership

• Stewardship

O:\My Documents\board\CRV>JA Vision Mission Values 121217,docx
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^ BerryDunn

Concord regional

VISITING NURSE
ASSOCIATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2020 and 2019

With Independent Auditor's Report
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.
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^ BerryDunn
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. (the
Association), which comprise the statements of financial position as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the
related statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the results
of its operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Other Matter

Effect of Adopting New Accounting Standards

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Association adopted new accounting guidance. Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606), FASB ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope of the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made, and related guidance. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
these matters.

Portland, Maine

December 15, 2020

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

bcrrydunn.com
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION. INC.

Statements of Financial Position

September 30, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS

2020 2019

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,302,379 $ 3,407,990

Certificates of deposit - 517,075

Patient accounts receivable, net 5,032,652 3,155,934

Other receivables 110,142 76,055

Prepaid expenses 284,531 232,447

Deposit - restricted - 9.005

Total current assets 19,729,704 7,398,506

Investments 25,782,735 23,801,877

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 1,183,988 1,180,712

Property and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization 3,847,993 4,140,555

Other assets 117.054 104.331

Total assets S 50.661.474 $ 36.625.981

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $  502,685 $  542,841

Accrued payroll and related expenses 3,170,497 2,373,814

Deferred revenue 33,779 17,980

Medicare accelerated payments 6,163,071 -

Provider Relief Funds 1,389,152 -

Paycheck Protection Program Funds 6.169.200 -

Total current liabilities 17,428,384 2,934,635

Other liabilities 117.054 104.331

Total liabilities 17.545.438 3.038.966

Net assets

Without donor restrictions 26,131,815 27,075,195

With donor restrictions 6.984.221 6.511.820

Total net assets 33.116.036 33.587.015

Total liabilities and net assets $ 50.661.474 S 36.625.981

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-2-
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.

Statements of Operations

Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
Other revenues

Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased services

Supplies and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Nonoperating revenue and support
Contributions

Spending policy allotment releases
Investment income, net of fees
Realized gains on investments
Unrealized gains on investments

Total nonoperating revenue and support

Deficiency of revenue and other support over expenses and
decrease in net assets without donor restrictions

2020

$ 30,906,613
1,956,936

75.638

23,916,474
6,748,440
1,464,856
4,003,213
386.339

587,056
669,862
348,968
364,633

1.164.236

3.134.755

2019

$ 30,827,330
930,401
56.971

32.939.187 31.814.702

22,431,997

6,427,820
1,442,313
4,089,337
352.491

36.519.322 34.743.958

f3.580.135l f2.929.256)

565,723
171,862
339,088

168,502
269.788

1.514.963

$  (445.3801 S (1.414.2931

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Balances, October 1, 2018 $28,489,488 $ 6.547.261 $35,036,749

Deficiency of revenue and other support over expenses (1,414,293) - (1,414,293)
Realized gains on investments - 50,967 50,967

Unrealized gains on investments - 79,227 79,227

Investment income, net of fees - 84,649 84,649

Change in fair value of beneficial interest in perpetual
trusts held by others - (21,451) (21,451)

Net assets released from restrictions for operations - (56,971) (56,971)
Spending policy allotment releases - (171.8621 (171.8621

Change in net assets n.414.2931 (35.4411 (1.449.7341

Balances, September 30, 2019 27.075.195 6.511.820 33.587.015

Deficiency of revenue and other support over expenses (445,380) - (445,380)
Realized gains on investments - 116,788 116,786

Unrealized gains on investments - 523,746 523,746

Investment income, net of fees - 76,093 76,093

Change in fair value of beneficial interest in perpetual
trusts held by others - 3,276 3,276

Net assets released from restrictions for operations - (75,638) (75,638)
Spending policy allotment releases (498.0001 (171.8621 (669.8621

Change in net assets (943.3801 472.401 (470.9791

Balances, September 30, 2020 $26,131,815 $ 6.984.221 $33,116,036

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  (470,979) $ (1,449.734)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 386,339 352,491

Realized gains on investments (481,419) (219,469)
Unrealized gains on investments (1,687,982) (349,015)

Change in fair value of beneficial interest in
perpetual trusts (3,276) 21,451

Decrease (increase) in
Patient accounts receivable (1,876.718) 693,935

Other receivables (34,087) 42.227

Prepaid expenses (52,084) (44,186)

Deposit - restricted 9,005 7,000

Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable (40,156) 94,257

Accrued payroll and related expenses 796,683 31,915

Deferred revenue 15,799 (1,205)

Medicare accelerated payments 6,163,071 -

Provider Relief Funds 1,389,152 -

Paycheck Protection Program Funds 6.169.200 -

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 10.282.548 f82D.333^

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property and equipment (93,777) (359,285)
Purchases of investments (10,678,443) (7,911,857)
Proceeds from sale of investments 10,866,986 7,547.774

Proceeds from maturities of certificates of deposit 517.075 2.241.771

Net cash provided by investing activities 611.841 1.518.403

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 10,894,389 698,070

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3.407.990 2.709.920

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 14.302.379 $ 3.407.990

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Organization

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. (the Association) is a non-stock, non-profit
corporation organized in New Hampshire. The Association's primary purposes are to provide home
health care, hospice, and community health services to residents of Concord, New Hampshire and
surrounding communities. Credit is extended at regular terms without collateral.

The Association Is a subsidiary of Capital Region Healthcare Corporation (CRHC), its sole corporate
member. CRHC is a holding company for various providers of health care services to residents in
central New Hampshire, including Concord Hospital.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (PASS) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 958, Not-For-Profit Entities. Net
assets are classified as follows;

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Association. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Association's management
and the Board of Trustees (Board).

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some dorior restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Association or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the statements of operations and changes in net assets. Gifts
of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of
cash or other assets that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as support
with donor restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations as to how long-lived assets must be
maintained, satisfactions of donor restrictions are reported when the property and equipment are
acquired and placed in service.

-6-



DocuSign Envelope ID: B8B53430-OB54-45C2-9459-OB5D2FCEE229

CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION. INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Certificates of Deposit

All liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash
equivalents.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable is stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Management provides a reserve for payment adjustments based on its
assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are applied against the reserve for payment
adjustments.

Investments

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. Consequently, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments
will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in
the statement of financial position.

Funds have been pooled for investment purposes. Income received, and realized and unrealized
gains and losses are apportioned to the participating funds based on their respective units in the
pool, and then apportioned to the appropriate net asset categories according to donor restrictions
and law. The units held by each fund are determined using fair value.

Property and Equipment

Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost. Owned property and equipment are
depreciated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.
Leasehold improvements are amortized by the straight-line method over the lesser of the lease
term or the estimated useful life of the related asset.

Medicare Accelerated Payments

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS)
made available an accelerated and advance payment program to Medicare providers. The
Association received $6,163,071 in April 2020. Under the program, CMS will begin recouping
payment from claim payments one year after the advance was made for a period of seventeen
months.

Paycheck Protection Program

On April 13, 2020, the Organization qualified for and received a loan in the amount of $6,169,200
pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), a program implemented by the U.S. Small
Business Administration (SBA) under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
(CARES) Act and the Paycheck Protection Program and Health Care Enhancement Act. The loan
is unsecured, has a two-year term with a maturity date of April 2022; bears an annual interest rate
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

of 1%: and shall be payable monthly beginning ten months after the end of the covered period.
The principal and interest of the PPP are subject to forgiveness, upon the Association's request, to
the extent that the proceeds are used to pay qualifying expenditures, including payroll costs,
interest on mortgages, rent and utilities, incurred by the Association, provided certain conditions
are met. It is the Association's intent to apply for forgiveness. Forgiveness is subject to the sole
approval of the SBA. The Association has chosen to follow the conditional contribution model for
the PPP and has opted to not record any income until forgiveness is received. The full amount of
the PPP received is reported in the current liabilities section of the balance sheet at September 30,
2020.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Services to all patients are recorded as revenue when services are rendered at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments
are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and in future
periods as final settlements are determined. Patients unable to pay full charge, who do not have
other third-party resources, are charged a reduced amount based on the Association's published
sliding fee scale. Reductions in full charge are recognized when the service is rendered.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Association. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on
actual services rendered. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients
receiving skilled and non-skilled services in their home or facility. The Association measures the
period over which the performance obligation is satisfied from admission to the point when it is no
longer required to provide services to that patient, which is generally at the time of discharge.

Providers of home health services to clients eligible for Medicare home health benefits are paid on
a prospective basis, with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment is based, on the
scoring attributed to the acuity level of the client at a rate determined by federal guidelines. As the
performance obligations for home health services are met, revenue is recognized based upon the
portion of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
prospective payment determined for the medically necessary services.

Providers of hospice services to clients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a fee-for-
sen/ice basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the Association's aggregate annual
Medicare reimbursement is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate. Revenue is
recognized as the services are performed based on the fixed rate amount. As the performance
obligations for hospice sen/ices are met, revenue is recognized based upon the portion of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
predetermined aggregate capitated rate per day.

Because all of the Association's performance obligations relate to short-term periods of care, the
Association has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in FASB ASC Subtopic 606-10-
50-14 (a) and, therefore, is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the
reporting period.

-8-



DocuSign Envelope ID; B8B53430-OB54-45C2-9459-OB5D2FCEE229

CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Deficiency of Revenues and Other Support over Expenses

The Association has deemed all activities as ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
healthcare services and, accordingly, they are reported as operating revenues and expenses,
except for contributions, investment returns, and spending policy allotment releases which are
recorded as nonoperating revenue and support. These topics are included in the deficiency of
revenue and other support over expenses pursuant to the fair value option under FASB ASC Topic
825, Financial Instruments.

Income Taxes

The Association is a tax-exempt entity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
(IRC).

Newlv Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In 2020, the Association adopted FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09,
Revenue from Contracts v/ith Customers (Topic 606), and related guidance, which supersedes
accounting standards that previously existed under U.S. GAAP and provides a single revenue
model to address revenue recognition to be applied by all companies. Under the hew standard,
which added Topic 606 to the ASC, entities recognize revenue when a customer obtains control of
promised goods or services in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASU No. 2014-09 also requires
companies to disclose additional information, including the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Association elected to adopt
this ASU retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial application;
therefore, the financial statements and related notes have been presented accordingly. The
balance of accounts receivable at the beginning of 2019 was $3,849,869. The adoption had no
significant impact for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019.

The Association also adopted FASB ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting
Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, which clarifies and improves the
accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The amendments in this
ASU assist entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as
contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of ASC Topic No. 958, or as exchange
(reciprocal) transactions subject to other accounting guidance, and (2) distinguishing between
conditional and unconditional contributions. This ASU was adopted by the Association for the year
ended September 30, 2020. Adoption of the ASU did not have a material impact on the
Association's financial reporting.
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Uncertainty Related to COVID-19

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus disease {COVID-19),
a global pandemic. In response to the global pandemic, CMS implemented certain relief measures
and also issued guidance for limiting the spread of COVID-19. Local, U.S., and world governments
have encouraged self-isolation to curtail the spread of COVID-19, by mandating the temporary
shut-down of business in many sectors and imposing limitations on travel and the size and
duration of group meetings. Many sectors are experiencing disruption to business operations and
may feel further impacts related to delayed government reimbursement, volatility in investment
returns, and reduced philanthropic support. There is unprecedented uncertainty surrounding the
duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and any government actions to
mitigate them.

The U.S. government has responded with several phases of relief legislation as a response to the
COVID-19 outbreak. Legislation enacted into law on March 27, 2020, called the CARES Act, a
statute to address the economic impact of the COVID-19 outbreak. The CARES Act, among other
things, 1) authorizes emergency loans to distressed businesses by establishing, and providing
funding for, forgivable bridge loans, 2) provides additional funding for grants and technical
assistance, 3) delays due dates for employer payroll taxes and estimated tax payments for
corporations, and 4) revises provisions of the IRC, including those related to losses, charitable
deductions, and business Interest. The Association has received emergency federal grant funding
under the CARES Act totaling $1,476,600 to offset COVD-19 costs and lost revenues. The
Association has released and reported $87,448 as other operating revenues in the statement of
operations for the year ended September 30. 2020 related to qualified COVID-19 costs. The
remaining funds are reported in the current liabilities section of the statement of financial position
under Provider Relief Funds at September 30, 2020 and will be either recognized or repaid during
2021.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through December 15, 2020, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

As of September 30. 2020, the Association had working capital of $2,301,320 and average days
(based on normal expenditures) of cash and cash equivalents and certificates of deposit on hand
of 151 and 47 at September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses and capital acquisitions costs not financed with debt or restricted funds
(unfunded capital expenditures), were as follows as of September 30;

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents, net of restricted amounts $ 12,913,227 $ 3,407,990
Certificates of deposit ■ 517,075
Patient accounts receivable, net 5,032,652 3,155,934

Other receivables 110,142 76,055

Investments without donor restrictions or Board

designations 672,100 470,933
Spending policy allotment releases 669.862 669.862

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures within one year $ 19.397.983 $ 8.297.849

The Board has designated a portion of its resources without donor-imposed restrictions to act as
endowment funds. These funds are invested for long-term appreciation and current income, but
remain available and may be spent at the discretion of the Board. The Association has also board
designated long-term investments that are intended to fund certain costs or projects that could be
made available for general expenditure upon board approval. The Association has other assets
restricted to use, which are more fully described in Note 6, and which are not available for general
expenditure within the next year and not reflected in the amounts above.

The Association manages its cash and cash equivalents available to meet general expenditures
following two guiding principles:

• Operating within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability.
• Maintaining adequate liquid assets.

3. Investments

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of the following at September 30:

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,190,256 $ 638,538
Mutual funds 778,020 2,088,821
U.S. Government bonds 3,325,250 3,775,796
Equities 15,739,605 14.969,878
Alternatives 178,155
Corporate bonds and notes 3.571.449 2.328.844

$ 25.782.735 $23.801.877

-11 -



DocuSign Envelope ID: B8B53430-0B54-45C2-9459-0B5D2FCEE229

CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Investments by class of net assets and designation consist of the following at September 30;

2020 2019

Without donor restrictions and undesignated $  672,100 $  470,933
Without donor restrictions - designated by Board

Available for capital purchases - 17,045,988
Functions as endowment 18,188,638
Hospice House 479,675 412,113
Hospice House replacement reserve 263,418 219,238
30 Pillsbury Street replacement reserve 311,194 261,360
Donahue Fund 41,272 36,105
Leadership Fund 26,517 25,345

With donor restrictions

Temporary in nature 2,044,580 1,759,018
Perpetual in nature (income of which is expendable)
and appreciation thereon 3.755.341 3.571.777

$ 25.782.735 $23.801.877

Investment income consisted of the following for the years ended September 30:

2020 2019

Interest and dividends, net of fees $  425,061 $  423,737
Realized gains on sales of investments 481,419 219,469
Unrealized gains on investments 1.687.982 349.015

$ 2.594.462 $  992.221

Investment management fees were $134,350 for 2020 and $135,895 for 2019.

Endowment

The Association's endowment consists of individual funds established for a variety of purposes by
donors. As required by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and
reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended September 30 are as follows:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Endowment net assets, October 1, 2018 $ $ 3.634.552 $ 3.634.552

Investment return

Investment income - 42,715 42,715

Net appreciation - 66.372 66.372

Total investment return - 109.087 109.087

Spending policy allotment releases - n71.8621 (171.8621

Endowment net assets. September 30, 2019 - 3.571.777 3:571.777

Investment return

Investment income 212,459 37,602 250,061
Net appreciation 1.428.191 317.824 1.746.015

Total investment gains 1.640.650 355.426 1.996.076

Transfers from board designated net assets 17.045.988 - 17.045.988

Spending policy allotmerit releases f498.0001 M71.8621 (669.8621

Endowment net assets. September 30, 2020 $ 18.188.638 $ 3.755.341 $21,943,979
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION. INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Strategies Employed for Achievina Obiectives

The primary objective of the investment funds is preserving the purchasing power of the assets.
The investment funds are managed based on relative performance, in a manner that provides
diversification, liquidity and a dependable source of income. The goal is to attain a rate of return
equal to the Consumer Price Index plus 4%.

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with donor-restricted endowment funds may
fall below the level that the donor or the State of New Hampshire Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (the Act) requires the Association to retain as a fund of perpetual duration
("underwater"). In accordance with GAAP, there were no such deficiencies at September 30, 2020
and 2019.

Soendina Policv

The Association has interpreted the Act as allowing the Board to appropriate for expenditure for
the uses and purposes for which the endowment fund is established, unless otherwise specified by
the donor, so much of the net appreciation, realized and unrealized, in the fair value of the assets
of the endowment fund over the historic dollar value of the fund as is prudent. In doing so. the
Board must consider the long and short-term needs of the Association in carrying out its purpose,
its present and anticipated financial requirements, expected total return on its investments, price
level trends, and general economic conditions. For the years ended September 30, 2020 and
2019, the Board retained all appreciation over 7% on donor-restricted endowment funds in net
assets with donor restrictions.

The Association developed an additional spending policy for funds donated to the Association
without donor restrictions and designated by the Board as endowment funds. The policy is
effective for the year ended September 30, 2020 and is a 3% annual draw calculated on a three
year rolling market value historical average regardless of deficiencies due to ternporary market
fluctuations. The funds are released monthly and transferred from the investment account to the
operating account to help support operations and continue to meet the Association's mission.

4. Beneficial Interest In Perpetual Trusts

The Association Is a beneficiary of the Benjamin and Gertrude Couch, George Griffin, Jeanne C.
and Walter W. Dwyer, and Thelma A. Larson Trusts, the assets of which are not in the possession
of the Association. The Association has legally enforceable rights and claims to such assets,
including the right to income therefrom. Consistent with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 958
Subtopic 605, related to "accounting for contributions received, these funds are included in the
Association's financial statements. The fair value of the trust assets is reflected as an estimate of

the present value of the future cash flows from the trusts and is reported as net assets with donor
restrictions. Appreciation of the trusts is not available for expenditure by the Association unless the
trustee decides to appropriate it. Total contributions from these trusts were $70,172 in 2020 and
$81,537 In 2019.
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September 30, 2020 and 2019

5. Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment as of September 30 follows:

Building and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Information system equipment

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Property and equipment, net

6. Net Assets

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows at September 30:

Funds maintained with donor restrictions temporary in nature:
Slusser Fund - scholarships
Audrey Lindgren Fund - financial assistance
Bishop Scholarship - nursing education
Ruby Raine Nydegger Fund - pediatric education
Penacook Village Fund - homemaker services for residents of
Penacook and Lower Boscawen

Hospice preparatory course and certification

Funds subject to the Association's spending policy and appropriation
Perpetual in nature, the income of which is expendable to
support:

General

Hospice House
Bishop Scholarship
Heston Hospice
Donahue Fund

Ruby Raine Nydegger Fund
Penacook Village Fund

Net appreciation of net assets with perpetual donor restrictions

Funds maintained in perpetuity
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts, income without restrictions

Total

2020

$ 3,815,651
1,160,818
698,830

1.009.527

6,684,826
2.836.833

$ 3.847.993

2020

$  110,094
1,421,506

5,897
23,329

483,754
312

2019

$ 3,762,996
1,160,818
698,830

1.411.709

7,034,353
2.893.798

$ 4.140.555

2019

101,094
1,318,857

2,835
16,859

319,374

312

2.044.892 1.759.331

1,136,357
823,377
20,543

463,244
32,199
32,282

899,567
347.772

1,136,357
823,377

20,543
463,244

32,199
32,282

899,567
164.208

3.755.341 3.571.777

1.183.988 1.180.712

$ 6.984.221 $ 6.511.820
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7. Net Patient Service Revenue

A summary of net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30 is as follows;

2020 2019

Gross patient service revenue
Medicare $ 27,635,809 $ 26,630,723
Medicaid 2,389,612 2,156,751
Private patient 816,354 1,084,508
Other third-party 3.493.424 3.988.904

34,335,199 33,860,886

Less contractual adjustments and charity care 3.428.586 3.033.556

Net patient service revenue $^0^908^613 $ 30.827.330

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and
exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The Association believes that it is in
substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. However, there is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change a material amount in the near term.
Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in net patient service revenue in the year that such amounts
become known.

In assessing collectability, the Association has elected the portfolio approach. This portfolio
approach is being used as the Association has similar contracts with similar classes of patients.
The Association reasonably expects that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of
contracts would not differ materially from considering each contract separately. Management's
judgment to group the contracts by portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each
portfolio category. As a result, management believes aggregating contracts (which are at the
patient level) by the particular payor or group of payors results in the recognition of revenue
approximating that which would result from applying the analysis at the individual patient level.

8. Charity Care

The Association has a policy of providing charity care to its clients who are unable to pay. Eligible
clients are identified based on their financial information obtained and subsequent analysis. Since
the Association does not expect payment, estimated charges for charity care are not included in
revenue.

The amount of home care charges foregone for services furnished under the Association's charity
care policy was $287,100 and $196,300 for 2020 and 2019, respectively. Costs incurred for these
activities approximated $319,600 and $208,600 for 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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the Association also provided services in other health-related activities, primarily to indigent
patients, at rates substantially below cost. Costs incurred for these activities, for sen/ices to
Medicaid patients, approximated $1,508,000 and $1,250,000 for 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Association was able to provide the above charity care under sliding fee scale policies and in
activities without established rates or at rates substantially below cost through a combination of
local community support and state grants. Local community support consisted of contributions and
municipal appropriations.

In 2020 and 2019, approximately 1% of nongovernmental home health and hospice clients served
received services on a discounted basis.

9. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Association generated approximately 87% and 85% of its gross patient service revenues from
the New Hampshire Medicaid and federal Medicare programs in 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Under these programs, the provider is reimbursed for the care of the qualified clients at amounts
which may differ from its standard charges.

The Association grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables for patients and third-
party payors at September 30 were as follows:

2020 2019

Medicare 72 % 72 %

Medicare Advantage 11 10

Medicaid 4 2

Other third-party payors 11 11

Patients 2 5

100 % 100 %

Due to the large concentration of clients who receive benefits from the Medicare reimbursement
program, the Association is highly dependent upon regulatory authorities establishing
reimbursement rates that are adequate to sustain the Association's operations.

10. Continqencv

Malpractice Insurance

The Association carries malpractice insurance coverage under a claims-made policy through a
group risk sharing arrangement with CRHC. The policy is a claims-made policy that includes basic
liability, as well as excess liability coverage on varying levels. The cost of purchasing the coverage
is shared between the entities that have entered into the risk sharing agreement.
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

Should the claims-made policy not be renewed or replaced with equivalent insurance, claims
based on occurrences during its term, but reported subsequently, will be uninsured. The
Association intends to renew its coverage on a claims-made basis and has no reason to believe
that it may be prevented from renewing such coverage. The Association is subject to complaints,
claims, and litigation due to potential claims which arise in the normal course of business. GAAP
requires the Association to accrue the ultimate cost of malpractice claims when the incident that
gives rise to the claim occurs, without consideration of insurance recoveries. Expected recoveries
are presented as a separate asset. The Association has evaluated its exposure to losses arising
from potential claims and determined that no such accrual is necessary for the years ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019.

11. Functional Expenses

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows;

2020 2019

Salaries and benefits $27,278,006 $25,503,422

Other operating expenses
Supplies 2,000,157 1,913,320

Purchased services 573,605 . 670,454

Transportation 736,033 783,997

Other 249,981 316,666

Depreciation and amortization 241.720 210.536

Total program services 31.079.502 29.398.395

Administrative and general
Salaries and benefits 3,386,908 3,356,395
Other operating expenses

Supplies 146,674 -

Purchased services 891,251 771,859
Transportation 24,484 40,787

Other 845,884 1.034,567

Depreciation and amortization 144.619 141.955

Total administrative and general 5.439.820 5.345.563

Total $36,519,322 $34,743,958

The Association allocates expenses between program sen/ices and administrative and general
functions. Benefits are allocated based on a percentage of total salaries, and depreciation, rent,
and repairs and maintenance are allocated based on square footage. The remaining expenses are
allocated using a Medicare cost reporting methodology.

-18-
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Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

12. Retirement Plan

The Association sponsors a 401 (k) profit sharing plan (Plan) that Includes an Association match
covering employees \who meet certain age and time requirements. Contributions to the Plan were
$929,354 for 2020 and $902,863 for 2019.

13. Deferred Compensation Plan

The Association had established a funded deferred compensation plan for the former

President/Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The plan was designed to defer a portion of annual
compensation and provide payments, as determined by the plan, at disability, retirement, death,
separation from sen/ice, or for certain financial hardships. All amounts contributed and income
earned under the funded plan are held in a trust and remain, until made available to the participant
or designated beneficiary, the sole property and rights of the Association, and are included in other
assets and other liabilities In the statements of financial position. The former President/CEO has
elected distribution at a future time.

14. Related Party Transactions

The Association engages In activities with CRHC and its subsidiaries on a regular basis. Services
provided to affiliates by the Association include nursing services of $99,245 for 2020 and $93,945
for 2019. Services purchased from affiliates by the Association include information system support,
telephone services, and supplies of $667,353 for 2020 and $774,213 for 2019. The Association
owed Concord Hospital $86,064 and $63,306 as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
These amounts are included in accounts payable in the statements of financial position.

The Association historically has purchased pharmaceuticals from entities which are owned by a
member of the Board. The member is no longer on the Board, and there were no related party
transactions during 2020. Total purchases were $574,451 in 2019 and the Association owed these
entities $68,363 at September 30, 2019, which was included in accounts payable in the statements
of financial position. The Association does not owe these entities any amount at September 30,
2020.

15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the exchange price that would be
received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
on the measurement date. ASC Topic 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires
an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to
measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.
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September 30, 2020 and 2019

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Association's assets
measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30:

2020

Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,190,256 $ 2,190,256 $ $ •

Mutual funds 778,020 778,020 _ _

U.S. Government bonds 3,325,250 3,325,250 . _

Equities 15,739,605 15,739,605 .

Alternatives 178,155 178^155
Corporate bonds and notes 3.571.449 _ 3.571.449 _

25,782,735 22,211,286 3,571,449
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 1,183,988 1,183,988
Assets to fund deferred compensation 117.054 117.054 - .

Total $27,083,777 $22,328,340 $ 3.571.449 $ 1.183.988

2019

Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents $  638,538 $  638,538 $ $ .

Mutual funds 2,088,821 2,088,821 _ _

U.S. Government bonds 3,775,796 3,775,796 - _

Equities 14,969,878 14,969,878 - .

Corporate bonds and notes 2.328.844 - 2.328.844 _

23,801,877 21,473,033 2,328,844
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 1,180,712 - - 1,180,712
Assets to fund deferred compensation 104.331 104.331 _ _

Total $25,086,920 S21.577.364 $ 2.328.844 $ 1.180.712
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September 30, 2020 and 2019

Fair value of the investments is measured using quoted prices in active markets where available.
Fair value of Level 2 corporate bonds is primarily based on estimates using market prices of
comparable securities.

Fair value of the beneficial interest in perpetual trusts is measured based on quoted market prices
of the investments in the trusts, but is classified as Level 3 as there is no market in which to trade
the beneficial interest itself.

Changes in the fair value of assets classified as Level 3 are comprised of the following;

Balance, October 1. 2018 $ 1,202,163
Change in value (21.451)

Balance, September 30, 2019 1,180,712
Change in value 3.276

Balance, September 30, 2020 $ 1.183.988

16. Merger Agreement

On July 1, 2020, the Association signed a merger agreement with Central New Hampshire VNA &
Hospice to merge the two. agencies with the Association being the surviving corporation. The
anticipated effective date of the merger is December 31, 2020.
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Board of Trustees

Melvin J. Severance, III, CFP

Chair

Michelline Dufort

Vice-Chair

James Mullins, CPA
Treasurer

Michael T. Griffin

Secretary

Beth J. Slepian, MBA, PT
President/CEO

Andrea Stevenson, RN, BSN

Representative At-Large

Brett Allard, Esq.

Daniel L. Andrus

Patricia Bourgault

Deacon Winton DeRosia

Brian D. Duffy, Esq.

Erin Feltes, Esq.

David F. Green, MD
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Timothy Lesko

Lyn Lindpaintner, MD

Curbstone Financial Management Corporation

UNH Center for Family Enterprise

DL Carlson Investment Group

Cross Insurance

Concord Regional VNA

The Derryfield School

Bernstein Shur

Foundation for Healthy Communities

Concord Eye Care

Christ the King Parish

Northeast Delta Dental

DrummondWoodsum

Concord Hospital Center for Urologic Care

Associated Grocers of New England

Granite Investment Advisors

Retired
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BETH J. SLEPIAN, MBA, PT

Dynamic leader with strong communication and interpersonal skills. Experienced in all levels of home care and hospice
operations, including budgeting, strategic planning, and personnel management. Proven ability to ensure high quality
patient outcomes and patient satisfaction. Successful track record of leading complex organizational improvement
efforts and implementation of best practices. Demonstrated ability to work throughout a continuum of care. Passionate
about advocacy and legislative issues with relationships at state and national level with New Hampshire delegation.

Professional Experience

2015 - Present President/Chief Executive Officer, Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association,
Concord, NH
Responsible to the Board of Trustees for the strategic, operational, and development activities
of the agency's Home Care and Hospice Program, Hospice House, Private Duty Program and
Community Health Services.

2013 - 2015 Vice President, Education and Clinical Compliance, Concord Regional Visiting Nurse
Association, Concord, NH

Researched and analyzed federal, state, and local regulations, to insure compliance. Prepared
and implemented education and corrective actions for clinical staff.

1994- 2013 Northeast Rehabilitation Health Network, Salem, NH
Administrator, NRH Home Care, 2011-2013
Directed all daily operations of NRH Home Care to ensure that care is delivered according to
the philosophy, goals, objectives, and policies and procedures of the department. 2011-2013
Clinical Director, NRH Home Care, 1995-2011
Physical Therapist, NRH Home Care, 1994-1995

1992 - 1994 Director of Physical Therapy, New Hampshire Rehabilitation Hospital, Concord, NH

1987 - 1992 Northeast Rehabilitation Hospital, Salem, NH
Stroke Program Director, 1990-1992
Staff/Senior Staff Physical Therapist 1987-1990

Community/Committee Participation

•  National Association for Home Care & Hospice - Board of Directors {2021 - Present)
o  Government Affairs Committee & Advocacy Medicare Advantage Subcommittee (2020- Present)

•  Strategic Healthcare Programs Advisory Board (2020-present)
•  New Hampshire Cares ACO - Management Committee, Transformation of Care Committee (2020 - Present)
•  UNH Peter T. Paul College of Business and Economics CEO Peer Group - Member (2020 - Present)
•  CATCH Community Housing - Board of Directors (2019 - Present)
•  Greater Concord Chamber of Commerce - Board of Directors (2018 - Present)
•  Havenwood Heritage Heights, Concord, NH - Board of Directors (2017 - Present)
•  VNA Health System of Northern New England (2017 - Present)

o  President (2019 - Present)
•  Home Care, Hospice & Palliative Care Alliance of New Hampshire - Board of Directors (2016- present)

o  Chair of the Legislative Committee (2020- present)
•  National Government Services Provider Outreach and Education Advisory Group for Home Health (2014-

Present)
•  Region 2 Lead for 1115 (a) Medicaid Waiver Demonstration Project to Build Capacity for Transformation of the

delivery of Behavioral Health Services. - Executive Committee Member (2017-2020)
•  Accountable Care Partners ACO, Management Committee, Quality Committee (2015-2019)

Education

Award

Master of Business Administration, Non-Profit Leadership, New England College
Excellence in Governance Certificate Program, NH Center for Nonprofits/Saint Anselm College
Bachelor of Science, Physical Therapy, University of Vermont

•  2018 Mary Ellen LaRoche Home Care Public Policy Award Recipient, Home Care Association of NH
Licensure. Professional OrQanizations

•  Current New Hampshire Physical Therapist #964
•  American Physical Therapy Association
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Geraldine Holmes

Chief Financial Officer - Concord Regional VNA

Highly motivated individual looking to obtain a position where my leadership skills in finance, customer

service and communication will be utilized.

Authorized to work in the US for any employer

Work Experience

Chief Financial Officer

Concord Regional VNA

May 2016 to Present

• Oversees and provides direct supervision of the finance, payroll, billing and accounting staff

• Assists management team in preparing financial data for contract and grant requests

• Maintains the reporting for donations and schedules related to restricted assets/ endowment funds

• Coordinates the preparation of all finance schedules for the annual external audit

• Prepares quarterly cost reports and program statements

• Compiles and reports data for the annual Medicare Cost Report

• Maintains the chart of accounts and processes the month end general ledger transactions

• Develops and implements streamlined and sophisticated procedures within the finance department

• Prepares and presents annual budgets to Board of Directors

• Prepares and presents monthly Financial Statements for Finance Committee and Board of Directors.

Director of Finance

Hanover Hill Health Care Center

January 2000 to May 2016

• Manage all Financial Functions of a 124 Bed Skilled Facility

• Oversees the management and implementation of Billing processes for Medicare. Medicaid, Private

and Commercial Insurances to ensure continued compliance

• Preparation and presentation of Financial Statements for monthly management meetings and other

financial reporting requirements

• Prepare and analyze monthly General Ledger to ensure ongoing compliance

• Prepare Quarterly Federal, State Tax Returns and Annual Cost Reports

• Manage all Cash Flow transactions

• Prepare and implement Annual Budgets

• Manage Information Technology- including hardware and software purchases, website changes,

software updates and daily maintenance and troubleshooting

• Develop forecasts based on upcoming regulatory changes

• Work closely with Administrator to ensure facility is compliant with all regulatory guidelines

Education
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MBA

Southern New Hampshire University

Bachelor's Degree In Accounting
Southern New Hampshire University

Skills

• Financial Reporting

• accounting

•  cash

• budget

• payroll

Additional Information

Computer Skills;

Microsoft Office, Netsolutions Clinical/Financial Software, Peachtree Accounting, ADP, PolicyTech, Quick

Books, Kronos Timekeeper Manager, Microsoft Publisher and Mckesson.

Other:

• Served as Chair of Customer Service Committee for 5 years.

• Serves on the Finance Committee for Region 2

• Serves on the Board of Directors of the Concord Family YMCA

• Serves on the Finance Committee of the Home Care Association of NH

• Voted by peers for annual Managers Star Award 2010, 2012 and 2013

• Serves as Administrative Support for the Candia Trustees of Trust Funds
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Patricia Messier, RN

Employment History:

Concord Regional VNA, Concord NH

Community Health Services RN 09/2013 to present
Home Care RN 01/1996 to 09/2013

Lakes Region General Hospital, Laconia NH

RN Primary Nurse 10/1996 to 12/1996

Havenwood Nursing Home, Concord NH

RN/Charge Nurse 02/1994 to 10/1996

Melody Pines Day Camp, Manchester NH

Camp Nurse Summers 1988 to 1995

Education:

NH Technic al Institute, Concord NH Nursing degree completed 1993

Licensure:

State of NH/Compact License 09/15/1993 to present
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Beth Slepian CEO $288,467.00 0 0

Geraldine Holmes CFO $199,020.00 0 0

Patricia Messier RN $39,848 38.9% $15,500
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Lori A. Shibinettc

Chief Executive Officer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHrRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL

36 CLINTON STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-5300 1-800-852-3345 Ext 5300

Fax: 603-271-5395 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 21, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, New Hampshire Hospital, to exercise
a renewal option to an existing contract with Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. (Vendor
#174069), 30 Pillsbury Street, Concord, NH. 03301. to continue providing foot care sen/ices to clients at
New Hampshire Hospital, by increasing the price limitation by $16,000 from $15,500 to $31,500 and by
extending the completion date from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2021, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. 36% General Funds, 64% Other Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 7,
2017 (Item #19).

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and
2021, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with
authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office If needed and
justified.

05-95-94-9400-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity

Code

Current

Budget

Amount

Increased/

(Decreased)

Amount

Modified

Budget
Amount

2018 101-500729 Contracts for Program Services 94052200 $7,500 $0 $7,500

2019 101-500729 Contracts for Program Services 94052200 $8,000 $0 $8,000

2020 101-500729 Contracts for Program Services 94052200 $0 $8,000 $8,000

2021 101-500729 Contracts for Program Services 94052200 $0 $8,000 $8,000

Totals $15,500 $16,000 $31,500

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing foot care services to approximately three
hundred twenty-five (325) clients at New Hampshire Hospital who are considered high risk due to
diabetes, medication or medical history and to provide foot care education to clients not considered
high risk.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T, Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

The original agreement includes language in the Exhibit 0-1, Revisions to General Provisions,
that allows the Department to renew the contract for up to four (4) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council. The Department Is in agreement with renewing
services for two (2) of the four (4) years at this time.

Clients are considered high-risk when their medical history or medication put them at risk of
developing potentially high-risk conditions including diabetes, with complications such as reduced
sensation or circulation to the feet; a history of lower limb amputation; a foot Infection; foot ulcer;
peripheral vascular disease; rheumatoid arthritis; a neurological condition causing foot desensitization;
Immuno-suppression; and infected in-growing toenail.

The Contractor conducts foot assessments and recommends a plan of care. Foot care services
for high-risk clients include filing of normal or slightly thickened toenails, filing of rough or hard skin with
a pumice or foot file and the application of emollient creams when skin is dry. Foot care education is
provided to low-risk clients who do not have any of the high-risk factors but had a podiatric problem
that required treatment by a podiatrist. Self-care education includes a demonstration of how to file nails
safely, footwear advice and foot care literature. The Department is satisfied with the services currently
being provided by the Contractor.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, clients at New
Hampshire Hospital may not have access to proper foot care education and foot care services
necessary to remain in good health.

Area served; New Hampshire Hospital's Acute Psychiatric Services Building

Source of funds: 36% General Funds and 64% Other Funds (Provider Fees)

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

jpectfully submitted.

Jo^tCey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Seruices' Mission is to join con^n^unilies and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Foot Care Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Foot Care Services Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Foot Care Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and the Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 30 Pillsbury
Street. Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 7, 2017, (Item #19), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3; the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services;

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #1 remain in full force and effect: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$31,500.

3. Form P-37, Genera) Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements (v5 10.09.18).

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. Amendment #t
RFA-2018-NHH-06-FOOTC-01-A01 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Foot Care Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date ' Len A. Shibinette

Chief Executive Officer

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc.

5/^0/1q
Date Name:

Title:

AcknoNwIedgement of Contractor's signature:

State of /f/lMft^^Countv of on 10. before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

HfiHy H05ieM, ex^curi\/t
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: U, "2^2/3

MAftY MOSSEAU, Notary Public
State of Naw Hampshire

My Commission Expires Ju.no 6,2023

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. Amendment #1
RFA-2018-NHH-06-FOOTC-01-A01 Page 2of3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Foot Care Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this ofTice, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. Amendment #1
RFA-2018-NHH-06-FOOTC-01-A01 Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the toss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publicatipn 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any arid all Information owned or managed by
the Stale of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Persona! Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, sutxontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the toss of data through theft or device misplacement, toss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/09/>6 Exhrbti K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 1 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security numt)er, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R, Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by-a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be t>ound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such, information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ceriified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information., SFTP folders and sut)-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. .

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. . The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contraaor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 5 of 9 Date 5/20/rq



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Departhient and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552ia), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and-
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their aedential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notrfication is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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KAija S. Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9544 |.800-«52.3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 4, 2017

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, New Hampshire Hospital, to enter
into an agreement with Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. (Vendor #174069). 30
Pillsbury Street, Concord, NH, 03301 for the provision of foot care services to clients at New
Hampshire Hospital, in an amount not to exceed $15,500 effective July 1, 2017, upon Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2019.. 20% Federal Funds, 34%
General Funds and 46% Other Funds

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2018 and
State Fiscal Year 2019, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the
Budget Office If needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-94-9400-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Activity Code Amount

2018 101-500729 Contracts for Program Services 94052200 $7,500

2019 101-500729 Contracts for Program Services 94052200 .  $8,000

Total: $15,500

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this agreement is to provide foot care services to approximately three hundred
twenty five (325) clients at New Hampshire Hospital who are. considered high risk due to diabetes,
medication or medical history and to provide foot care education to clients not considered high risk.

Clients are considered high-risk when their medical history or medication put them at risk of
developing potentially high-risk conditions including diabetes, with complications such as reduced
sensation or circutation to the feet; a history of lower limb amputation; a foot infection; foot ulcer;
peripheral vascular disease; rheumatoid arthritis; a neurological condition causing foot desensitization;
immuno-suppressed and infected in-growing toenail.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

The Contractor will conduct a foot assessment and recommend a plan of care. Foot care
services for high-risk clients include filing of normal or slightly thickened toenails, filing of rough or hard
skin with a pumice or foot file and the application of emollient creams when skin is dry. Foot care
education will be provided to low-risk clients that do not have any of the high-risk factors but had a
podiatric problem that required treatment by a podiatrist. Self-care education will include a
demonstration of how to file nails safely, footwear advice and foot care literature.

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association was selected through a competitive bid process. A
Request for Applications (RFA) was published on the Department of Health and Human Services' web
site from February 23, 2017 through March 23. 2017. The Department received one (1) application.
The application was reviewed and scored by a team of Individuals with program specific knowledge.
The Bid Summary is attached.

The Department reserves the right to renew the agreement for up to four (4) additional years
subject to continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor performance and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, clients at New Hampshire
Hospital may not have access to proper foot care education and foot care services necessary to
remain in good health.

Area served; New Hampshire Hospital's Acute Psychiatric Services Building

Source of funds: 20% Federal Funds made available under the Social Security Act, Section
1923, Payment for Inpatient Hospital Services Furnished by Disproportionate Share Hospitals, 34%
General Funds and 46% Other Funds (Provider Fees).

In the event that the Federal Funds or Other Funds become no longer available, no further
general funds will be request to support this request.

Respectfully submitted.

7

Katja S. Fox
Director

Division for Behavior Health

Approved: i i /
Jenrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department ofHealth and Human Services' Mission is tojoin communities and families

in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Foot Care Services

RFA Name

RFA-2018-NHH-06-FOOTC

RFA Number Reviewer Names
^lan^HiIl^lKsin^Coordmalor

1.

Bidder Name

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association

PassrFall

Maximum

Points

Actual
Points

100 100

2.
Rosemary Coslanzo. Nursing
Coordinator

Dan Rinden, Business

Administrator III



Subject: Foot Care Services fRFA'20l8'NHH-06'FOOTC'0n
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version S/SnS)

Notice: This agreement and all ofits attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

I. I State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3857

IJ Contractor Name

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association
1.4 Contractor Address

30 Pillsbuiy Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-224.4093

1.6 Account Number

05-95 -94-9400-87500000.101-

500729

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2019

1.8 Price Limitation

$15,500

1.9 ContractingOfficer for Slate Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq. Interim Director of Contracts and
Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

1.11 Contractor Signature

jL

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Beth J. Slepian

lyi3 Acknowfedgement: State of .County of Merrimack

On , before the undersigned ofnccr, personally appeared the person identiftcd in block 1.J2, orsatisfectorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. 11. and acknowledged thai s/he executed this documcm in the capacity
indicated in block M 2.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

rSeal]

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Juatiee ef the

MARY MOSSEAU
Notary Public-New Hampshire

My Commission Expires
AUtiUII 14. llUlU

H. eyec. A^iisr/wr'
1.14 State Agency Si

n

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (i/applicable)

By* Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By:V^I///l /\y^ . / ..On:

xecutive Counbl (fapplicable)

On:

1.18 Aj^roval by me Govenwr^

By.
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOIVSERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perfomi,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block ].18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the Stale shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contraiy, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement Immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Stale
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The Slate reserves (he right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision oflaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in (his Agreement to the
contraiy, and notwithstanding unexpected cIrcumstarKes, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities. Including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 1 1246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
Implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, r^ulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at Its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during (he term of
this Agreement, and for a,period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who Is a Slate
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Apeement. This provision shall survive Icrminalion of this
Agreement

7.3 The Contracting Ofllcer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any orie or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall corjstitute an event of default hereunder

{'^veni of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, Including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior wrinen approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after the dale of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an indepernlent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to Its employees.

12. ASSIC NM £ NT/DE LEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the Stale.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against ̂ y and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive genera] liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than Sl.OOO.OOOper occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cenificate(s)
of insurance for ai) insurance required under this Agreement
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatefs) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certincate(s) of
insurance and any renewals tl^eof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certjficate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor Is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewa[(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Slate of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor. '

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed fo have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks i .2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parlies hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Stale law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used In this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the Interpretation, construcUon or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY- In the event any of the provlslonsof
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrao' to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed In a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Foot Care Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Appiicabte to All Services

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the Department has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.2. The Contractor staff providing foot care services to New Hampshire Hospital clients
must be licensed by the State of New Hampshire Board of Nursing.

1.3. The Contractor shall conduct health and background checks for staff providing foot
care services to New Hampshire Hospital clients.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure that staff providing foot care serves to New Hampshire
Hospital clients attend a one (1) hour New Hampshire Hospital Orientation prior to
working with patients.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide all supplies necessary for basic foot care services.

1.6. The Contractor must abide by infection control practices and properly clean the
podiatry equipment.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall provide direct foot care services to high-risk New Hampshire
Hospital patients. Patients are considered high-risk when their medical history or
medication can put them at risk of developing potentially high-risk conditions, including
but not limited to;

2.1.1. Diabetes with complications such as reduced sensation or circulation to the

feet or a history of lower limb amputation;

2.1.2. A foot infection, foot ulcer, peripheral vascular disease, rheumatoid arthritis, a
neurological condition causing foot desensitization, immuno-suppressed; and

2.1.3. Infected in-growing toenail or prescribed oral steroid therapy.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide foot care education to low-risk New Hampshire Hospital
patients. Low risk patients do not have any of the high-risk factors listed in Subsection
2.1 of this agreement but had a podiatric problem that required treatment by a
podiatrist, such as painful and large corns or calluses.

Concofd Regional Visiting NufseAssodalion Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Foot Care Services

Exhibit A

3. Service Descriptions

3.1. The Contractor shall conduct a foot assessment and recommend care needed.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide foot care services to high-risk patients for eight (8) hours
per month, approximately twenty (20) minutes per client that Includes, but Is not limited

to;

3.2.1. Filing of normal or slightly thickened toenails;

3.2.2. Filing of rough or hard skin with a pumice or foot file; and

3.2.3. Application of emollient creams when skin is dry.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide self-care education to low-risk patients that includes, but
is not limited to:

3.3.1. A demonstration of how to frie nails safely;

3.3.2. Required foot care or footwear advice; arxt

3.3.3. Supporting literature.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall provide written progress notes for each client visit that will
include, but not be limited to:

1.1. Patient Medical Record Number;

1.2. Date of Service;

1.3. Time and duration of services;

1.4. Procedure; and

1.5. Recommended follow up.

4.2. The Contractor shall,provide the detail in Section 4.1, and any other Information, to the
unit coordinator where services are provided.

Concofd Regionat Visiting Nurse Assodatiof) Exhibit A Conlractof
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Foot Care Services

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8
of the Form P-37 General Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to
Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services.

2. The Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Funds, Other Funding (Provider
Fees) and by Federal Funds made available under the Social Security Act, Section 1923,
Payment for Inpatient Hospital Services Furnished by Disproportionate Share Hospitals.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services, in
compliance with the following funding requirements;

3.1. The Contractor shall be reimbursed at $77.50 per hour for on-srte services only (not
portal to portal).

3.2. If the Contractor works less than a full hour, the hourly rate will te prorated at fifteen
(15) minute Intervals of actual work completed.

3.3. The Contractor's total number of hours shall not exceed two hundred (200).

4. Payment for said services shall t>e made as follows:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the tenth (10"*) working day of each month
which Identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the
prior month. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of
receipt of each accurate invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this
Agreement.

4.2. The Contractor shall include on the invoice the following information: Patient's Medical
Record Number, date(s) of service, number of hours worked per patient and total
hours for the billing period.

4.3. invoices shall be submitted to:

Accounts Payable
New Hampshire Hospital
35 Clinton Street

Concord. NH 03301

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event of non-compliance with any
Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this agreement.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line Hems, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits
within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may
be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval
of the Governor and Executive Council.

Concofd Regional Vis'ting Nurse Assooation Exhibits Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for sen/ices hereunder, as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-appllcant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the perfonnance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final

'  Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who Is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records durtng the Contract Period:

. 8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accountlrtg procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to irtdude. without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include alt records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regardirig the provision of sen/ices and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/redpient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the cbse of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
OfTtce of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accountir^g Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of ̂ eir
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities; In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract. It is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

to. Confidentlafity of Records: Ail Information, reports, and records maintained hereurber or collected
In connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential arrd shall rtot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may l^e made to
public ofTicidls requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Eidiibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initiats
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report; A final report shall be sut}mitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satl^actory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: DisallowarKe of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract arxJ upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the tenns of the Contract are to be performed after the erKl of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided hov^ver, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall lr>clude the following
statement;

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, vnth funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, procures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
piia written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilKles
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permK, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditiorts of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more arKi has 50 or
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on Hie and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educatlonal institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, txjt are required to submit a certification form to tf>e OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http:/'/www.o]p.usdoj/about/ocr/pd^cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee WHiSTLEaLOWER Rkshts and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblcwer Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees worlring on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 O.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition ttireshold.

19. Subcontractors; DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the functlon(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as tt>e Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that spedfies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Eidiibit C - special Provisions
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying ail subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance v/iti be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas fOr improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting priixiples established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, mles and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligiUe
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and corxJitions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit 6 of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said referertce shall be deemed to mean all such lavirs. regulations, etc. as
they may be amerxJed or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that fur>ds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal fonds available for these services.

EiWM C - special Provisions Cortraciof Initials
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N«w Hsmpahlre Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISiOHS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

r  Subpereoraph 4 of the General Previsions of this contract. Condftional Mafure of Aereement. is replaced a»
fdoars:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
NoMthstandtng any prevision of this Agraenient to the cortrary, afl obHoattons of the State hereunOar,
Indudhg M^thout limtotton. the continuance of payments, m whole or in part, undar this Agreement ve
conthgant upon oontiiued appropriation or avaiat^ of funds. Induding any sutMequent changes to the
appropriation or msi\atmt}f of funds affectad by any staia or federal legialative or executive edton that
lechjcee. ellniinates, or otherwiM modmes the appropriation or avaHabttty of hmding fbr this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided In ExhlM A. Sco^ of Services, In whole or In part In no event shaB
the Stats be table fbr any payments hereunder In excess of appraprtatad or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, tarmlnetton or modification of appropriated or avatable lunds. the State that have the right
to witMuXd payment unta such funds become avaflable. if ever. The Stale shafl have the right to reduce,
terminate or irtodlfy services under this Agreement Immetfetely upon glvb^g the Contractor notice of such
reduction. tannlnatlQn or modiSea tioa The State shall not be required to transfer fimds from any other
soiTce or account Into the Account(s) identAed In blocfc 1.6 of the GenerM Provisions. Account Number,
or any other account In the event funds are reduced or unevalable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provistona of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the Wlowkw
tanguage;
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time fbr any reason, at the soto discretion of the State

30 days after gMng the Contractor written notica that the State is exerdslng Hs option to terminate the
Agre«neni

10.2 In the event of earty termination, the Contractor shall, within IS days of notice of earty tennlnadorv
develop and sutrmft to the State a Transition Plan for services under the AgreemenL Including but not
Bmked to. Iderfttfying the present arrd fature needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shsl fully cooperate wfth the State and shafl promptly provide detaled information to
support the Transition Ptan including, but not Iknited to. any Informatioh or data requested by the
Slate retated to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan arxl shaB provide ongolrig
convmnicatjon and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Slate as requested.

10.4 In the event that sendees under the Agreement, includfog but net limited to cBenIs receiving services
under the Agraemont are t/anutlonad to having services delvered ̂  another entity toctuifr^g
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process tor unMamrpled delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shal establish a method of noUfylng clients and other affected individuals about the
transHicr). The Contractor shall Includa the proposed communlcalions in As TransltiQaEim submRted
to the State 88 described above. . . viri/» fliO

^our(i)ylf^^iA/r^
3. The Department reserves the right lo renew the Contract for up i^smr^ additional years, subject to the

cof«nued evaiabnity of funds, satlsfaclory performance of services end approval by the Governor and
Executive Councfl.

Extitott C-1 - Revlilors to Gensrol Provisiona Contredor Initials
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New Hftmpshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.}, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and punished as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon v^ich reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send It to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongang drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's p(^icy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistarK:e programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D > Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
Workplace Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identrfication number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. TaKIng one of the fdiowing actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with resp^t to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Contractor Name: Concord Regional VNA

Date / ^me: Slcpian
President/CEO

Exhibit 0 - Cenification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
Wodcplace Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub^rantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will.be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Concord Regional VNA

BethJ.SIepian
President/CEO

Exhibit E - Certificaiion Reganling Lobbying Contractor Intials
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New Hampshire Department of Hea(th and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSiON

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in tl^s clause is a matehal representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant leams
that its certification was erroneous v^en submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.' 'debamed,' "suspended.* 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction," 'participant,' "person," "primary covered transaction,* 'principal.' 'proposal,' and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and.
Coverage sections of the mles impiemenling Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibillty and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lowier tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Ndthir^g contained in the foregoing shall be constnjed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExhibH F - Cerltrtcatton Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Heafth and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agerK/,
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dvil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
conne^on with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(FederaJ, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an ex^anation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective tower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from pariidpation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier partidpant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier partidpant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will
indude this dause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exdusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without modification in all lower tier covered
transacboris and in all solidtations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Concord Regional VNA

Date Beth J.

Presid

lan

t/CEO

Narpe:
TtUe

Exhibit F - Certification Regardlrtg Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initiais
And Other ResponsibBity Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

Tf>e Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sectiorts 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor wit! comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondischmination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

. the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
l>enefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C, Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683.1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the t)asis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondisaimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Polides
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laNvs for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No, 13559, which provide fundamental principleis and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancerrient of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibil G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discnmination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply vnth the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Concord Regional VNA

6-3
Dat ^ Bethd^lepian

^  President/CEO

Exhibit G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Ertvironmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
^h all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Concord Regional VNA

Date NameVlBeth J. S|^ian
Title:/ President/CEO

ExNbit H - Certincation Regarding Contractor Initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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Ne\M Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibit 1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identiftable Health Information, 45
CFR Pahs 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Depahment of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaqreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. "Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhtbil I Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

i. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law' In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the Arr>encan National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, empbyees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
ill. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed onty as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance v^th the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide sen/Ices under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessrhent when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o  .Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Assodate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Assodate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disdosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disdosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assodate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered EntKy for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to.a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a v/ritten request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Ks obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's requeM to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, -the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those

purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busiriess
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Terwination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined h<»rpin

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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Seareoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shad not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Autrtorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date '

Concord Regional VNA
Name of the Contractor

Siishature of A(Hhorizdd Representative

^ Beth I. Slepian

Name of Authorized Representative

President/CEO
Title of Authorized Representative

Date'' /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTffiCATiON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
525,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award sut^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of enUty
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agefKy
4. NAICS.code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Concord Regional VNA

Dat Na Bethi^lepian
Presiaent/CEO

Exhibit J - Ccrlirication Regarding the Federal FwKlirig CoritTBCtor Initials
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
t)elow listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:
095520417

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the ansv/er to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:.

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

CUX>HHS/t 10713
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